Production Board (CCW Ltd, UK) User Manual

Title Page

© 2005 Data Display Ltd

No part of this document may be reproduced by any process without the prior written permission from Data Display Ltd.

The information in this document is provided for reference only. While every effort has been made to make sure it is accurate and complete, Data Display Ltd does not accept any liability arising out of the application or use of the information or products described herein. Moreover, Data Display Ltd reserves the right to alter specifications or procedures without notice.

This document may contain or refer to information or products protected by copyright or patents and does not convey any license under the patent rights of Data Display Ltd nor the rights of others.

All products referred herein are trademarks of their respective owners.

Publication details:

Title: Production Board User Manual *Issue:* 1 *Issue Date:* 26-Sep-05 *Part Number:* DDJ09975001

Produced by:

Product Support Department Data Display Ltd Deerpark Industrial Estate Ennistymon, Co. Clare Ireland Printed in Ireland



Figure 1.1 – Display Type 1.



Figure 1.2 – Display Type 2.

Table of Contents

1 .	INT	RODUCTION	4
1	.1.	SCOPE	4
1	.2.	PURPOSE	4
1	.3.	System	4
2.	INS	TALLATION	5
2	2.1.	UNPACKING	5
2	2.2.	HARDWARE	5
2	2.3.	SOFTWARE	6
3.	PRO	DDNSDS SOFTWARE	7
3	5.1.	THE USER INTERFACE	7
3	3.2.	EXPORTING DATA	9
3	3.3.	SET THE TIME AND DATE	11
3	8.4.	EDITING THE SCHEDULE FILE	11
3	8.5.	COPYING SIMILAR FILE DETAILS	12
3	6.6.	MESSAGE EDITOR FOR DATALINE	13
4.	SYS	STEM WIRING	15
	~ - ~		13
4	.1.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM	15 15
4 4	.1. .2.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM Power Supply Units	15 15 15
4 4 4	.1. .2. .3.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM Power Supply Units Logic Board 2000	15 15 15 16
4 4 4 4	4.1. 4.2. 4.3.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM Power Supply Units Logic Board 2000 Parallel Interface	15 15 15 16 17
4 4 4 5.	.1. .2. .3. .4. MA	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM Power Supply Units Logic Board 2000 Parallel Interface	15 15 16 17 18
4 4 4 5.	4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. MA 5.1.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM Power Supply Units Logic Board 2000 Parallel Interface INTENANCE Maintenance Instructions	15 15 15 16 17 18 18
4 4 4 5. 5	5.1. 5.1. MA 5.1. 5.1.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM POWER SUPPLY UNITS. LOGIC BOARD 2000 PARALLEL INTERFACE INTENANCE MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS 1. Preventative Maintenance	15 15 16 17 18 18 18
4 4 4 5. 5	5.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. MA 5.1. 5.1.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM POWER SUPPLY UNITS. LOGIC BOARD 2000 PARALLEL INTERFACE INTENANCE MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS 1. Preventative Maintenance	15 15 15 16 17 18 18 18 18 18
4 4 4 5. 5	4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM	15 15 15 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18
4 4 4 5.	4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM POWER SUPPLY UNITS. LOGIC BOARD 2000 PARALLEL INTERFACE. INTENANCE MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS 1. Preventative Maintenance 2. Cleaning the Display 3. Corrective Maintenance 4. Special Measures following a Stoppage	15 15 15 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
4 4 4 5. 5	 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 4.4. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM POWER SUPPLY UNITS LOGIC BOARD 2000 PARALLEL INTERFACE INTENANCE MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS 1. Preventative Maintenance 2. Cleaning the Display 3. Corrective Maintenance 4. Special Measures following a Stoppage HANDLING EQUIPMENT	15 15 15 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 19
4 4 4 5. 5 5 5 5	 4.1. 4.2. 4.3. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.3. 	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM POWER SUPPLY UNITS LOGIC BOARD 2000 PARALLEL INTERFACE INTENANCE MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS 1. Preventative Maintenance 2. Cleaning the Display 3. Corrective Maintenance 4. Special Measures following a Stoppage HANDLING EQUIPMENT SPECIAL TOOLS	 15 15 15 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 19 19 19 19
4 4 4 5. 5 5 5 5 5 5	A.1. A.2. A.3. A.4. MA 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.1. 5.2. 5.3. 5.4.	DISPLAY POWER BLOCK DIAGRAM POWER SUPPLY UNITS. LOGIC BOARD 2000 PARALLEL INTERFACE	 15 15 15 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19

1. Introduction

1.1. Scope

The scope of this document covers the operation and maintenance of the Production Board Display System for CCW Ltd, UK.

1.2. Purpose

The purpose of the document is to provide the relevant information to enable the user to install, operate and maintain the Production Board correctly.

1.3. System

The Production system consists of two types of Display Boards that show production data connected to a control PC. All characters on each Display are 50mm high and use high-bright red and multi-colour LED technology. Depending on the efficiency of the production line, the data on the multi-colour boards will be shown in red, amber or green.

The primary function of the Board is to show real time production information obtained from the production line using 24V pulses.

Display Boards consist of two sections:

DATABOARD – this is the TARGET ACTUAL section of the Display that monitors the production output. Values are shown in each of the relevant 6 character fields for the following:

- Cups / Min, this is the Actual production amount of cups produced in the previous minute and is incremented by 24V pulses to Pin 1 of the 4 Pin Maplin at the rear of the Display.
- Shift Total, the total units produced for current shift or since reset
- Down Time, total down time of the production line excluding breaks

DATALINE – this is the 15 character scrolling section at the bottom of the Display and is used to show general information such as company notices, safety messages etc.

The Board is operated over a RS232/RS485 serial network using *ProdnSDS*, a windows based software package.

2. Installation

2.1. Unpacking

Carefully remove the items from their package and store the packaging safely. After unpacking, inspect the contents for any damage that may have occurred during shipment.

2.2. Hardware

The Display Board(s) should be located in a position where there is unrestricted viewing of the front face of the Board. Also locations where the Board is subject to bright lights or direct sunlight should be avoided. Mount the Board securely and connect the cables as shown in the figure below.



Figure 2.2 – System Configuration with Rear Connections.

2.3. Software

The *ProdnSDS* software package is contained in the installation file, *ProductionUpg.exe*. To install the software, do the following steps:

- 1. Place the *ProductionUpg.exe* file on your desktop.
- 2. Double-click on the *ProductionUpg.exe*.
- 3. Click on the *Next* > button to begin the installation and follow the on-screen instructions. Click the **Yes** button for destination directory/folder.

Welcome X	Directory
Welcome to the ProdnSDS32 Install program.	ProdnSDS32's files will be installed in the following directory:
This program allows you to install ProdnSDS32 on your hard drive.	C:\ProdnSDS
It is strongly recommended that before proceeding, you ensure that no other Windows programs are running.	ProdnSDS32 Install Program Image: Construction of the structure of the struct
If you do not wish to install ProdnSDS32, click 'Exit' now, otherwise click 'Next' to continue.	Yes No
< <u>Back</u> <u>Next></u> <u>Exit</u>	

Figure 2.2 – Installation Screen.

4. When the process is complete, all files are stored in the *ClProdnSDS* folder unless the destination folder has been changed.

Add *ProdnSDS* to the Start menu or your Desktop by creating a short-cut as described in your Windows User Manual. The executable file to run the software package is *ProdnSDS.exe* and should be located in *C:IProdnSDS* directory.

rodnSDS										
Edit View Favorites	Tools Help	WILLIAM								
Back • 🕞 - 💋 🍃	Search 🌔 Fold	ets 💷 -								
ess 🗀 C \ProdeSDS				10.00			-			I 🖸 🖸
ile and Folder Tasks	actual pat	CRACKUP	CORVS INI	CRESTORE	DATE 7IP		EVENTS DAT	CENTRAL DAT		
Ither Places	*	CONCROT	COPTION	Concorrone	0001-0-2017	000000	Eventation	unversioner	arrige dat. at	Ng Lines
Local Disk (C:) My Documents My Computer	log.bit	log.xls	MAP.BMP	NETWORK.	NEW.TXT	OPTS.DAT	PRODOBDAT	PROD01.DAT	PROD02 DAT	PROD10.DAT
My Network Places	-		-	-	-		-	-		
Details	* PROD11.DAT	PROD12.DAT	PROD20.DAT	PROD21.DAT	PROD22.DAT	PROD30.DAT	PROD31.DAT	PROD32.DAT	PROD40.0AT	PROD41.DAT
	PROD42 DAT	PRODSODAT	PRODST.DAT	PROD52.DAT	PRODERDAT	PROD61.DAT	PROD62DAT	PROD70.DAT	PROD71.DAT	PROD72.DAT
	PROD80 DAT	PROD81.DAT	PROD82.DAT	P prodriSDS min	PRODNSD	Production exe	PRODUCT		SCH1.BAK	SCH1.TXT
	SCH2 BAK	SCH2 TXT	SCH3.BAK	SCHATKT	SCH4 BAK	SCH4 TXT	SCH5 BAK	SCH5.TXT	SCH6.BAK	SCH6 DXT
	SCHZ BAX	SCH2 INT		SCHRITZ	ech@hak	E STREET	eritel 0 tel	SCHUTZT	SDSDBVRE	SENDS DAT

Figure 2.3 – C:\ProdnSDs Folder Files.

3. ProdnSDS Software

ProdnSDS software is a user interactive software package designed to send and receive real time production information to the Display Board. It contains features such as:

- Set Shift, Break and Poll Times
- Manually download production data
- Incorporates a 15 character Message Editor for Dataline

NOTE: The Displays may be reset manually or by entering a reset time in the schedule time list. Refer to section 3.4. It does not reset itself after each shift.

3.1. The User Interface

Double-click on the *ProdnSDS* icon to run the program, *ProdnSDS.exe*. The User Interface consists of the Menu Bar, a layout of the Production Board together with the various buttons and data fields that control the Displays.

Production Software	
D•A•T•A DISPLAY 28-09-05	Send To Voltive Pack MANUAL EDIT VALUES : PRODUCT / Min 14
Set Takt Time Current Takt Time = 120sec. Set Poll Times Message Message SIMULATION	SHIFT TOTAL 2345 DOWN TIME 15 Edit Schedule DOWNLOAD
Opens the Message Editor for scrolling	Exit

Figure 3.2 - ProdnSDS User Interface.

To operate the Display manually, enter the applicable values in the three fields, *Product / Min*, *SHIFT TOTAL* and *DOWNTIME*. Select the Display from the drop-down list and click on the *Send To* button. Refer to 3.4 for bottom scrolling Dataline field.

NOTE: Do not click the *Send To* button during Poll Times.

DDJ09975001	26-Sep-05	Page 7



Sending to Displays

To send to an individual Display, click on the down-arrow button to show the list of the Displays available. Click on the required Display name and click the *Send To* button.

Display Poll Times

The user may poll the Displays at specific times of the day to view the current data on each Display. To set the Poll Times, do the following steps:

- 1. Click on the Display from the drop-down list.
- 2. Click on the *Set Poll Times* button on the User Interface.
- 3. Enter the times in HH:MM, 24 hour format.
- 4. Click on the *OK* button.
- 5. Click on the Send To button

POLL TIME 1: 10:59 POLL TIME 2: 13:59 POLL TIME 3: 16:59	Time	FORMAT 24 hour eg. 00:30 or 23:59
POLL TIME 2: 13:59 POLL TIME 3: 16:59		POLL TIME 1: 10:59
POLL TIME 3: 16:59		POLL TIME 2: 13:59
		POLL TIME 3: 16:59

roduc	tion Statis	tics						
TEXT	FORMAT	eg.	(13)	= 013	or	(7)	= 007	
				RED I	LEVE	:L:	070	
T	AKT:		00	GREE	N LH	EVEL:	090	
				AMBE	R LE	EVEL:		
				0	ĸ	CAN	CEL	

In the above example, ideally the number of units to be produced per minute is 100, i.e. TAKT value. The Actual value will be shown in green so long as it remains above 90 units per minute. Should the value fall below 90, the values will change to amber and should the fall below 70, the values will change to red.

TAKT Time Settings

The TAKT Time value is set to provide a moving target to which the current production level may be monitored. This value is the amount of units produced per minute. The values are displayed in red, amber or green depending on production efficiency and are set at the operators' discretion. To set the TAKT Time value and Levels, do the following steps:

- 1. Click on the *TAKT Times* button on the User Interface.
- 2. Enter the TAKT value, e.g. 100.
- 3. Click on the *OK* button.

3.2. Exporting Data

As the days production data is being processed, the user can view the days data via a spreadsheet. The data is stored in a text file named *log.txt*, which is located in the *C:IProdnSDS* folder. This file may be viewed using Notepad.exe or similar text editor and it may also be imported into spreadsheet format, e.g MS Excel.

Back + 🕤 - 🏂 🔎 S	earch 😥 Fold	ers								
ness C.VProdriSDS										
File and Folder Tasks 🛛 🌣	ACTUAL			CRESTORE	DATS ZIP	D01.050.8		GRAVINS DAT	intel P	
Other Places *	Merry	- Cor	COPTIGUN	Cheartone	0001020	000000	EVENTIALIST	unweng.ow	arrigit dat. at.	Aug Liver
Local Disk (C.) My Documents My Computer	log tet	log.xls	МАР ВМР	NETWORK.	NEW.TXT	OPTS.DAT	PRODOBDAT	PROD01.DAT	PRODO2 DAT	PROD10.DAT
S My Network Places		-	-	-	-	-	-			-
Details ¥	PROD11.DAT	PROD12.DAT	PROD20.DAT	PROD21.DAT	PROD22.DAT	PROD30.DAT	PROD31.DAT	PROD32.DAT	PROD40.0AT	PROD41.DAT
	PROD42.DAT	PRODSODAT	PROD51 DAT	PROD52.DAT	PROD60.DAT	PROD61.DAT	PROD62.DAT	PROD70.DAT	PROD71.DAT	PROD72 DAT
	PROD80.DAT	PRODBI.DAT	PROD82.DAT	P prodriSDS even	PRODNSD	Production eve	PRODUCT		SCH1.BAK	SCHI TXT
	SCH2 BAK	SCH2 TXT	SCH3.BAK	SCH3.TXT	SCH4.BAK	SCH4.TXT	SCH5.BAK	SCH5.TXT	SCH6.BAK	SCH6 TXT
	F			-		-		-		

Figure 3.3 – C:\ProdnSDs Folder Files.

To import the file into MS Excel (MS Excel version 2000), do the following steps:

- 1. Open the MS Excel program on your PC.
- 2. This opens an empty spreadsheet.
- 3. Click on *Data > Get External Data > Import Text File*.

	licrosoft Excel - log.xls						
	<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>I</u> nsert F	ormat <u>T</u> ools	Data Window Help				
1 2 3 4	A1 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	 Voltive Pa 13:37 13:37 13:37 13:37 13:37 13:37 	 ²↓ Sort Filter Subtotals Validation <u>Text</u> to Columns	• 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 55 5	F	00% • ?) . [f
567	Multi Pack Pillar Pack	13:37 13:37 13:37	Get External <u>D</u> ata	► 65	Run Save <u>d</u>	Query	
7 8 9	Tealight Line 3 Tealight Line 4	13:37 13:37 13:37	Kehresh Data		New <u>W</u> eb C)uery ase Query	-
10 11 12 13					Import <u>T</u> ex Edit Query. D <u>a</u> ta Range	t File Properties	-
14						*	

Figure 3.4 – Import Menu Command.

Click on the *log.txt* file, which is located in the *C*:*ProdnSDS* folder and follow the on-screen instructions. Use the *Fixed Width* selection.

Lines with arrows signify a	column breal	k.				
To CREATE a break line,	click at the o	desired position	٦.			
To DELETE a break line, (double click o	on the line.				
To MOVE a break line, cli	ck and drag	it.				
)ata preview						
Data preview 10	20	30	40	50) <u></u>
Data preview 10	20	30	40	50	098765	
)ata preview 10 Voltive Pack Tealight Line 4	20	30 20-07-05 20-07-05	40 - 000123 - 000123	50 ,9999999 ,9999999	,098765 ,098765	·····
)ata preview 10 Voltive Pack Tealight Line 4 Multi Pack	20 - 16:55 - 16:56 - 16:58	30 20-07-05 20-07-05 20-07-05	40 - 000123 - 000123 - 000123	50 ,999999 ,999999 ,999999	098765 098765 098765	<u></u>
Vata preview 10 Joltive Pack Fealight Line 4 Wulti Pack Slass Fill Line 1	20 - 16:55 - 16:56 - 16:58 - 16:58	30 20-07-05 20-07-05 20-07-05 20-07-05	40 - 000123 - 000123 - 000123 - 000123 - 000123	50 ,999999 ,999999 ,999999	098765 098765 098765	<u></u>

Figure 3.5 – Text Import Wizard.

Add line breaks as shown above and click the *Next* > button. Click the *Finish* button on the next screen.

	licrosoft Excel - la	g.	xls									
	<u>Eile E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew Ins	er	t F <u>o</u> rm	at <u>T</u> ools <u>D</u> at	а	Wind	lov	v <u>H</u> elp				
	2888	R	A ABC	X 🖻 🛍	<	*	2	* Cil *	6	Δ.	f*	₽ļ
	B1 💌		= -		_						_	
	A	B	С	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J		K
1	Voltive Pack	Đ	16:55	20/07/2005	-	123	1	999999		98765		
2	Tealight Line 4	-	16:56	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
3	Multi Pack	-	16:58	20/07/2005	-	123	1	999999		98765		
4	Glass Fill Line 1	-	16:58	20/07/2005	-	123						
5	Glass Fill Line 2	-	16:58	20/07/2005	-	123						
6	Pillar Pack	-	16:58	20/07/2005	-	123						
7												
8	Voltive Pack	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
9	Tealight Line 1	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
10	Tealight Line 2	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
11	Tealight Line 3	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
12	Tealight Line 4	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
13	Glass Fill Line 1	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999	1	98765		
14	Glass Fill Line 2	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
15	Multi Pack	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
16	Pillar Pack	-	17:00	20/07/2005	-	123		999999		98765		
17												
10												

Figure 3.6 – Sample Spreadsheet Data.

The data should now appear in spreadsheet format. Select and delete the rows and columns as required.

3.3. Set the Time and Date

To set the current Time and Date, do the following steps:

- 1. Run the *ProdnSDS* software
- 2. Click on Configuration > Set Time.
- 3. On the dialog box, click on the Yes button.

NOTE: Make sure your PC is set to the correct Date and Time as this is the Date and Time that will be stored in the Displays memory.

3.4. Editing the Schedule File

The Schedule file contains the Start, Stop and Reset time parameters for each day. This file is in text format and must have the file extension .txt, e.g. '*Monday.txt*. Up to 25 time parameters may be added for each file. These may include Shift Start and Stop Times, Breaks and Reset etc.

To edit the schedule file, do the following steps:

- 1. Click on the *Edit Schedule* button on the User Interface.
- 2. Select the day from the drop-down list. The time parameters for that day opens.

ProdnSDS\sch1.	txt		×
COPY TIMES TO	ANOTHER DAY	Choose Day Of Wednesday	Week Schedule :
Start Stop	Reset		
08:00 15:59	15:59		
16:00 23:59	23:59		
00:00 07:59	07:59		
a **a**	**a**		
*a** **a**	**a**		
*a** **a**	**a**		
*a** **a**	****		
a** **a**	**a**		
a** **a**	**a**		
*a** **a**	**a**		
*a** **a**	**a**		
*a** **a**	**a**		
*a** **a**	****		
a **a**	**a**		
a **a**			
			1 1
		OK	Cancel

Figure 3.7 - Schedule File Details.

- 3. Click on a line to open the *Schedule Item* window.
- 4. Enter the start and stop times in 24 hour format with a colon as shown in Fig. 3.8.

ie stop	• TIME
1	.5:59
: -	00:59
ок	CANCEL
	IE STOI

Figure 3.8 - Shift Time Entry.

- 5. Click on the *OK* button. Enter a Reset time, where applicable.
- 6. Click on the *DOWNLOAD* button to send the shift times to the Display.

3.5. Copying Similar File Details

Where the shift patterns are similar, click on the *Edit Schedule* button on the User Interface. Click on the *COPY TIMES TO ANOTHER DAY* button to copy a selected file from one day to another.

To copy times, do the following steps:

- 1. Select the new day from the *Choose Day of Week Schedule* list.
- 2. Click on the *Copy Times to Another Day* button.
- 3. Select the day from the drop down list.
- 4. Click on the *OK* button. The times are copied to the new day file.
- 5. Click on the *DOWNLOAD* button to send the shift times to the Display.

c:\prodnsds\te:	st.txt		
<u> </u>	7 TIMES TO ANOTHER DAY	Choose	e Day Of Week Schedule Monday
Star	t Stop Reset		
Сору	To Another Day	×	
**a* **a* **a*	Choose Bay Below Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday • Friday • Saturday • Sunday		

Figure 3.9 - Copying schedule times to another day.

3.6. Message Editor for Dataline

To send text to the 15 character Dataline section of the Display, click on the *Message* button to open the Message Editor Interface. Enter your text message in the text box and click on the *SELECT* button. The message is now added to the message list at the bottom.



Figure 3.10 – Message Editor

Click on the *SEND* button twice to send the new text message to the Display

To edit a text message, click the message number (+/-) to show the message in the text box. Make the changes to the text message and click on the *SEND* button. The changes to the message are shown in the message list. Click on the *SEND* button again to send the new changes to the Display.

Various Commands, Pause Rates and Font Types can be selected from the drop down lists to give your message more effect.

When messages are sent to the Display, click on the *Message SIMULATION* button to view the text message currently being shown on the Display.

4. System Wiring

4.1. Display Power Block Diagram

The Display operates from an incoming mains supply of 230 Volts AC. The Live (Brown) and Neutral (Blue) wires are terminated at the PSU via a 10 Amp Fuse and Filter. The Earth (Yellow/Green) is terminated using an M5 ring crimp and is securely fixed to the main Earth point on the chassis of the Display.



4.1 - Mains Power Supply Distribution.

4.2. Power Supply Units

Power Supply Units provide the DC power for the various electronic components in the Display Board. The 5V PSU provides DC power to the Display Boards and 5V power for the Logic Board.



Figure 4.2 – Typical Wiring of a Power Supply Unit.

4.3. Logic Board 2000

The Logic Board is the principal circuit board in the Display. The Board contains the CPU (8 bit Hitachi 6303RP), memory (32K RAM, 32K ROM) and interface circuitry for the Display system. 12V DC power for the Logic is at connector JP17 and the RS485 signal is via connector JP21. The Parallel Interface cable is connected at JP22.



Figure 4.3 – Logic Board.

4.4. Parallel Interface

The Parallel Interface Board is used to detect level changes and cause appropriate responses from the Display. For this application, the inputs at JL1, JL2 and JL3 are used to control the production data on the Display.



Figure 4.4 - Parallel Interface Wiring.

5. Maintenance

Warning: Disconnect the power supply before you remove any display panels. Make sure work area is clean and clear of tools and miscellaneous items of equipment after maintenance.

5.1. Maintenance Instructions

5.1.1. Preventative Maintenance

Inspect the Display for defects before each operation. Do a visual check for the following:

- Damaged or dirty Lens
- Loose Cables
- Defective LEDs

5.1.2. Cleaning the Display

Routine cleaning of the Display Board is at the discretion of the operator and subject to local conditions. Use damp non-abrasive materials such as a sponge, or lint-free cloth and a soft detergent (washing-up liquid) to clean the Display. Remove difficult stains or marks with a suitable solvent. **DO NOT USE** sharp or metal objects.

5.1.3. Corrective Maintenance

To do maintenance tasks, unscrew the screws at the side of the Display and remove the Side Profile. Remove the Lens carefully and put in a safe place.

Replacing a defective LED Display Board:

- 1. Unscrew the attaching screws and disconnect all relevant wiring
- 2. Replace the Display Board and connect all wiring.

Replacing a defective Logic Board:

- 1. Unscrew the attaching nuts and disconnect all relevant wiring
- 2. Replace the Logic Board and connect all wiring.

Carefully slide the Lens back on the Display and attach the Side Profile. Clean the Display with a damp cloth and make sure the unit is watertight after all maintenance.

Replacing a defective Fuse:

- 1. Use a flat-head screwdriver to open the Fuse holder on the Display
- 2. Replace the Fuse
- 3. Close the Fuse Holder.

5.1.4. Special Measures following a Stoppage

If the Display is out of service for a long period of time, carefully remove the Display and store it in a cool dry place.

5.2. Handling Equipment

- One working platform
- Standard tool kit

5.3. Special Tools

There are no special tools required.

5.4. Spare Parts

For spare parts, contact your nearest Data Display Customer Service Department.

Make sure to quote the Data Display No. in the Product Specifications section of this Manual and the Serial No. of the Display.



Part Number	Description
DL205-HBR	LED Display Board, 5 Character, Red
DL210-HBR	LED Display Board, 10 Character, Red,
DL210-HBM/C	LED Display Board, 10 Character, Multicolour, 3 off
AUTOLOGIC2000	Logic Board, 2000, 2 off
AUTOP/I	Parallel Interface
D00-2216	PSU, 5 Volt, 100W
D00-1670	Filter
D00-3324	Fuse, 10 Amp
DL210-HBM/C AUTOLOGIC2000 AUTOP/I D00-2216 D00-1670 D00-3324	LED Display Board, 10 Character, Multicolour, 3 off Logic Board, 2000, 2 off Parallel Interface PSU, 5 Volt, 100W Filter Fuse, 10 Amp

Table 5.1 - Replaceable Parts for Display Board.

6. Product Specifications

CHARACTERISTIC	VALUE
Display Features	
Display Type	Production Display Board
Data Display No.	J09975001
No. of Lines per Board	Type 1 = 4
	Type 2 = 2
No. of Characters per Line	Databoard = 6
	Dataline = 15
Character Height	50mm (2 inch)
LED Colour	High-bright Red and Multicolour
Communication	
EPROM	Type 1 = VOTIVE.OBJ, SCROLL15UK.OBJ
	Type 2 = VOTSMAL.OBJ, SCROLL15UK.OBJ
Baud Rate	9600
Data Format	8 bit, 1 stop bit, no parity
Electrical	
Power	220/240V AC
Fuse Value	10 Amp
Housing	
Dimensions (LxHxD)	Type 1 = 736mm x 440mm x 75mm
	Type 2 = 736mm x 245mm x 75mm
Weight	Type 1 = 11Kg
	Type 2 = 7Kg
Housing	Welded Aluminium, Black
Front Screen	3mm Red, Polycarbonate
Environmental Conditions	
Temperature Range	-5°C to 65°C
Humidity Range	5% to 80% without condensation

Table 6.1 - Product Specifications.